
Q.55 Are there separate budget allocations for community partnerships for current or future 
recruitment of user research or testing participants? 

 

A.55 There is no separate budget for this task at this time.  

 

Q.56 Are we comfortable paying some participants (such as disabled individuals) more than others in 
order to secure their participation? 

 

A.56 Participant compensation figures will be identified at the point of task authorization or through 
work with the technical authority. Compensation amounts may vary between user groups, but must 
respect tri-council policy guidance on inappropriate incentives.  

 

Q.57 Are there existing tools used by CDS that can be leveraged by our team to recruit for 
participants and then communicate research opportunities to them? 

 

A.57 CDS will work with the bidder to identify the appropriate tools for recruitment and 
communication, however, it is ultimately up to the bidder to full-fill the tasks and deliverables identified 
in the specific scope or sub-scope. Please see annex A, section 6, on page 70 for the equipment and 
information CDS is responsible for.  

 

Q.58 What is the current structure of the user research team at CDS that our team would be 
collaborating with on establishing processes, workflows and key deliverables (e.g. reports, decks etc.)? 

 

A.58 Personnel involved in establishing a recruitment workflow, process, and key deliverables could 
include, but are not limited to: CDS researchers or Head of Research, CDS product managers or Head of 
Product, the technical authority and the contracting authority. More information on CDS structure will 
be provided at the contract award  

 

Q.59  On 3.5  Section III Certifications Attachment 1 to Part 3 Pricing Schedule (page 19) you state “ 
The inclusion of the estimated level of effort (in days) volumetric data has been provided purely for the 
information purposes to assist Bidders ……”  This paragraph is followed by a PRICING SCHEDULE FOR 
SUBMISSION OF RESOURCES TYPES which contains a table with headings of “Firm all-inclusive rate per 
hour, GST/HST extra (in Cdn $); Estimated level of effort (in hours). Later, on page 72, the ANNEX B 
BASIS OF PAYMENT states that the contractor will be paid all-inclusive fixed time rates based on a per 
diem rate, with GST/HST extra.  



 

The question is whether this bid is to be presented on a “per diem” or “per hourly” rate 

 

A.59 The bid is to be presented on a per diem rate.  

 

Q.60 Under 2.0 Technical Evaluation Criteria Scope 1: Digital Government Implementation on pages 
30 and 31 on both 1.1 and 1.2 under Scope, Complexity and Role the criteria of “Similarity of the 
initiative objective(s) to CDS’s mandate, with reference to user-centric design, agile development, 
openness, and diversity” is awarded up to 5 points. Further, on Scope 3: Targeted Training on pages 34, 
36, and 37 under 3.1.2, 3.2.2, and 3.3.2  a criteria “similarity of the scope and mandate of the 
organization(s) for which the training was provided to CDS’s scope and mandate” is also awarded 5 
points. 

 

Given that the background material on page 65 states that “ (…the CDS is…) similar to other digital 
transformation units such as the United Kingdom’s Government Digital Services, The United States, 18F, 
and Ontario Digital Service….” Is one to assume that the only way to get 5 points for this criteria is to 
have worked at or provided services for one of those organizations or similar ones in other countries or 
jurisdictions; or the provision of similar services (in scope, breath and depth) provided for a singular 
organization(s) qualify for maximum points as well? 

 

A.60  The specific point structure for each sub-criteria is confidential.  

 

Q.61  On Sub-scope 3.3 Digital Literacy for Decision Makers on page 36 the premise for the evaluation 
scoring is entirely based on materials that were produced in the past. While I am not questioning the 
need to prove that a bidder is capable of producing training materials at the appropriate level (and be 
able to provide evidence to that effect), I would like to suggest that we should be developing new 
curricula that really addresses the skills and information challenges government decision makers are 
facing, something I don’t believe exist. And if it does, its effectiveness has not been rigorously tested. I 
have an idea I would like to propose on how to accomplish this task and I would like to be scored on the 
quality and value of this idea. How would you accommodate a forward thinking statement, in contrast 
to a past material evaluation? 

 

A.61  For sub-scope 3.3, bidders will be evaluated on a sample of previous training material, per 
evaluation criteria 3.3.1 and 3.3.2.  

 



Q.62  As a follow up to Q10 - Do proposed resources need to have a valid security clearance at the 
level of Reliability Status at time of proposal submission?  

 

A.62  Please see response to Q30 

 

Q.63  We will be sharing a framework that is internally created at the organization. It is our 
understanding that the Government will not lay claim to IP ownership of our framework should we 
share it with the CDS team. What can be claimed ownership are any outputs of applying the framework, 
as part of the worskhop. Kindly confirm. 

 

A.63  Correct, frameworks already developed would constitute background IP. The Government will 
not lay claim to IP ownership of any material submitted in support of a bidder’s application. 

 

Q.64  I am a single member LLC, and my partner technically subcontracts for the organization. Would 
you need us both to complete a security review and application? Or would my doing it suffice? 

 

A.64 Both the organization and the proposed resources must hold a valid security clearance for each 
scope, per Annex C.  

 

If the partner is being proposed to meet the evaluation criteria, then they would require a security 
clearance to conduct work. Please see responses 10, 20, 30, 32, and 42, for more information.  

 

Q.65  In completing the security review, it is not clear what "level" of security we would require to 
conduct training. Is this something you can advise us on? 

 

A.65  Please see section 7.3 “Security Requirements” for the applicable security requirements per 
scope.   

 

Q.66  Is there any template available that allows us to fill in the details requested in this RFP? Or are 
we to extract what we feel is pertinent to our submission? (not sure if this is what the inclusion of the 
Annexes suggests). 

 



A.66  There is no response template. Bidders may refer to PART 3 – BID PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS 
on page 13 and the relevant sections identified therein for more information.  

 

Q.67  Our workshop is typically limited to 20 participants to ensure full participation and learning. Is 
this something we can stipulate through our proposal? 

 

A.67  Details pertaining to specific task authorizations will be stipulated at the time of issuance, based 
on TBS’s needs and requirements at the time. Bidders may however, note capacity limitations.  

 

Q.68  I was able to review the terms for travel, however, I didn't see a section on workshop expenses. 
Would printing and supplies be covered by this initiative, or are we expected to provide for all printing 
and supplies? 

 

A.68  Printing and supply costs will be incurred by the bidder. 

 

Q.69  In filling out the different forms included in the RFP - are you making available digital copies for 
us to fill out, or would you prefer we print and hand-write, then subsequently scanning that back in to 
send to you via email (for example, Annex D). 

 

A.69  Annex D will be completed by TBS and bidders that win an ensuing contract.  

 

Q.70  May we make the assumption that any work samples, references, etc. will be held confidentially 
by your team? We work with large organizations where we have signed NDAs; it is imperative that what 
we share remains confidential and is not circulated. We also assume that none of our work samples will 
be shared with other vendors submitting. 

 

A.70  Yes, work samples and references submitted as part of a bidder’s application are confidential 
and will not be shared outside of the evaluation committee. Please also see response 35. 

 

Q.71  Are insurance coverage values suggested in the RFP provided in Canadian Dollars?  

 

A.71  Yes, all figures listed in the RFP are in Canadian Dollars. 

 



Q.72  Does insurance coverage need to be submitted with the RFP, or will proof only be requested if 
we are awarded the contract? 

 

 

Q.73  Our organization is unable to provide the code repositories because they do not belong to our 
organization. Will the web link to the service be sufficient with a note indicating that we cannot provide 
the repository due to proprietary concerns? 

A.73  Please refer to answer 13 

 


